
NOTICE OF A SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE OLIVENHAIN MUNICIPAL WATER 

DISTRICT’S FINANCE COMMITTEE 
1966 Olivenhain Road, Encinitas, CA 92024 
Tel: (760) 753-6466 • Fax: (760) 753-1578 

VIA TELECONFERENCE AND IN PERSON 

Pursuant to AB 3035, effective January 1, 2003, any person who requires a 

disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in a 

public meeting shall make such a request in writing to the District for 

immediate consideration. 

DATE: MONDAY, APRIL 28, 2025
   

TIME: 2:30 P.M. 

PLACE: HYBRID SPECIAL MEETING VIA ZOOM AND IN PERSON

The meeting is being held virtually as a convenience to the public. The meeting will not stop 
or suspend its in-person meeting should a technological interruption occur with respect to 
the Zoom or call-on options listed on the agenda.  

 For Zoom Participation:     For Zoom Call-in Only: 
        www.zoom.us/join               Call: (669) 900-9128  
 Meeting ID: 839 7607 9855 Meeting ID: 839 7607 9855 
         Passcode: 970925         Passcode: 970925  

Public Participation/Comment: Members of the public can participate in the meeting by 
emailing your comments on an agenda item to Jared Graffam at jgraffam@olivenhain.com or 
address the finance committee directly in real-time under the public comment section. If you 
do not receive a confirmation email that your comment has been received, please call (760) 
230-2569 or address the committee under the public comment section to ensure that your
comments are heard in real-time. The subject line of your email should clearly state the item
number you are commenting on and should include your name and phone number. All
comments will be emailed to the finance committee members.

Note: Items On The Agenda May Be Taken Out Of Sequential Order As Their 
Priority Is Determined By The Committee 

1

http://www.zoom.us/join


1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL (BOARD MEMBERS) 
 

3. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 10, 2025, 
REGULAR FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
6.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS STAFF’S PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE GENERAL 

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDED BIENNIAL OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
FISCAL YEARS 2025 AND 2026 AT MIDTERM 

 
7.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

 
 8. ADJOURNMENT 

2



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

OF OLIVENHAIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

February 10, 2025 
 

A regular meeting of the Finance Committee of Olivenhain Municipal Water District was 
held on Monday, February 10th, 2025, at the District office, 1966 Olivenhain Road, Encinitas, 
California via teleconference and in person.  

Director Meyers called the meeting to order at 2:03 p.m. In attendance were Neal Meyers, 
Vice President; Kimberly Thorner, General Manager; Rainy Selamat, Finance Manager and acting 
Deputy Treasurer; Leo Mendez, Accounting Supervisor; Jared Graffam, Financial Analyst II; and 
Georgeanna Clark, Financial Analyst I. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL (BOARD MEMBERS)  

 
Director Meyers noted that he was the only active board member in attendance due to 
the resignation of the Treasurer. It was noted that Finance Manager Selamat is the 
Deputy Treasurer so will be filling in as Treasurer for the meeting. 

 
3. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Director Meyers moved to adopt the agenda, seconded by Finance Manager Selamat, 
and carried unanimously.  
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There were no public comments. 

 
5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 04, 2024, REGULAR 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
Director Meyers moved to approve the November 4th, 2024, meeting minutes, seconded 
by Finance Manager Selamat and carried unanimously. 

 
6. REVIEW OF DISTRICT INVESTMENTS AND CASH REPORT FOR FOURTH QUARTER 2024 

 
Finance Manager Selamat reviewed the investment report as of December 31, 2024, 
with the committee. Cash and investments were discussed. Finance Manager Selamat 

3



reported that the current yield on the District’s investment portfolio has decreased 
slightly compared to the last quarter due to replacing matured securities with lower 
yields available in the market. Finance Manager Selamat reported that District 
investments are in compliance with the District’s Investment policy and that the District 
has sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations for the next 60 days. 
 
Finance Manager Selamat next presented the draft summary of fund balances over the 
previous five years. Director Meyers asked why the allowable minimum and maximum 
balance limits are increasing, and if it is something that the Board of Directors approves 
each time. Finance Manager Selamat explained that the minimum and maximum limits 
are based on different metrics depending on the fund, and those metrics are tied to the 
Board approved budget and Board-designated Fund Balance Policy. Director Meyers 
asked why the Water Operating fund was nearing the maximum allowable balance in 
December. Financial Analyst Graffam explained that staff had paused transfers to the 
Capital fund to increase the Operating fund in anticipation of the large pre-buy of water 
from SDCWA that was due in January. Financial Analyst Graffam noted that now that the 
pre-buy has been paid, the Operating fund balance is back to its normal levels as of 
January. 
 
Finance Manager Selamat also presented a three-year history of quarterly yields on 
investments. The graph showed increasing yields over most of the last three years and a 
slight decrease in yields over the last two quarters. Finance Manager Selamat noted that 
rates will likely continue to go down over the next quarter. The committee accepted the 
report as presented.   
 

7. QUARTERLY REVIEW OF OMWD’S FINANCIAL REPORT - BUDGET vs. ACTUAL REPORT 
(2ND QTR OF FY 2025) 
 
Finance Manager Selamat presented the Budget vs Actual report for the current fiscal 
year through December 2024. Finance Manager Selamat explained that revenue and 
expenses are close to budgeted numbers with most variances being caused by timing 
differences. Finance Manager Selamat then presented the water sales budgeted vs 
actuals graph for the first 6 months of fiscal year 2025 and explained that water sales 
are in line with budgeted predictions.  
 
The effect of the political climate on District operations was discussed, including the 
effect it is having on grant funding and the anticipated effects of various tariffs that have 
been announced. The committee accepted the report as presented.  

 
8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/INFORMATION 

 
No future agenda items for the next finance committee meeting were discussed.  

 
 

4



9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:35pm. 

5



   

 Memo 
Date: April 28, 2025 

To: Finance Committee  

From: Rainy Selamat, Finance Manager 

Via: Kimberly Thorner, General Manager 

Subject: REVIEW AND DISCUSS STAFF’S PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE GENERAL 
MANAGER’S RECOMMENDED BIENNIAL OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
FISCAL YEARS 2025 AND 2026 AT MIDTERM 

Following the Board adoption of the General Manager’s Recommended Biennial 
Operating and Capital Budget for fiscal years 2025 and 2026 in June 2024, the budgeted 
amounts for fiscal year 2025 were appropriated and have been used to pay for District 
operations and capital infrastructure needs since July 1, 2024.   

Proposed adjustments to the second fiscal year of the Biennial Budget (based on the 
first fiscal year actual results and projections) are presented to the committee and the 
Board for consideration and approval as part of the midterm biennial budget review 
process.  

Staff will present the attachment for discussion with the committee. 

Following the committee review and approval, the midterm budget adjustments will be 
brought forward to the Board for review and consideration at the May 2025 meeting 
and adoption at the June 18, 2025 meeting.  

Attachment: Midterm Budget Adjustments Presentation 

Agenda Item 6 

6



Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026 
Midterm Budget 

OMWD Finance Committee Meeting
April 28, 2025

7



Today’s Agenda 
• Midterm Budget Process 

• FY 2025 and FY 2026 Biennial budget was approved by the Board in June 2024 
• FY 2026 budget will be reviewed and updated at midterm (June 2025)

• Fiscal Year 2025 Highlights
• Review of Financials and Reserves  

• Midterm (FY 2026) Budget Development Overview 
• Update FY 2026 budget assumptions and forecasts 
• Challenges
• Mitigation efforts 

• Next Steps 

18



Midterm Budget Process

2

Compared FY 2026 budget 
adopted by the Board to 
projected actuals for FY 

2025
Revised budget assumptions 

Received input from each 
department manager on their 
departmental needs for the 
amended Fiscal Year 2026 

budget 

Reviewed proposed changes 
to departmental operating 

budgets with each manager 
and capital expenditures with 

each project manager for 
proposed changes for FY 

2026

Proposed midterm budget 
adjustments for 

consideration and approval

9



FY 2025 
Highlights
Budget vs Actual 
as of Feb 2025

310



FY 2025 Highlights
Budget vs Actual Water Sales

411



FY 2025 Highlights
-Pre-buy 3,449 AF at CY 2024 rates saving $360k in 

purchased water costs
-Received $530 thousand in federal and state grant 

funding
-Received $1.76 million in capacity fee revenue
 -$1.2 million of the capacity fees were from a Multi-

Family project, The Nest at La Costa
-Sale of Weigand parcel for $1.25 million ($350k received 

already, the remaining $900 thousand will be received 
by end of June 2025).

512



FY 2025 Highlights 
5 Year History of OMWD Fund Balances by Quarter

613



FY 2025 Highlights 
5 Year History of OMWD Fund Balances by Quarter

714



FY 2025 Highlights 
Completed Capital Improvement Projects (CIP)

8

Recurring Replacement Projects:

15



9

Midterm Budget Development:  
FY 2026 Key Assumptions Update
 

Operating Revenues:
• Potable and recycled water sales

• FY 2026 Volume: Increase from 17,920 (AF) to 19,000 (AF) to more align with FY 2025 
projected actual sales (transitioning to drier weather conditions).

• A 7.5% preliminary revenue adjustment for CY 2026 – subject to Board’s approval  
• Assume maximum pass-through of 12% on purchased water wholesale costs and 3.48% inflation 

pass-through on SD-CPI  
• Selling excess treated water services to Vallecitos

• Minimum purchase of 2,750 AF per agreement @ 80% of SDCWA’s treatment surcharge rate
• Wastewater service revenue: Revenue adjustment of 5.5% effective 7/1/25 per the 

wastewater rate ordinance adopted by the board in June 2024. Wastewater revenue estimate 
based on FY 2025 actual consumption (or lowest winter months’ usage for single family)

Operating Expenditures: 
• Pass-through Purchased Water Wholesale Cost Increases:

• Potable Water from SDCWA and MWD: assume a 14% cost increase from SDCWA – 
pending approval from SDCWA Board, but OMWD can only pass-through 12%

• Recycled Water from Vallecitos, City of San Diego, San Elijo JPA, RSF CSD – subject to 
change 

• OMWD’s Proposed FY 2026 Operating Budget: 
• Almost 0% net change to the Adopted FY 2026 Operating Budget to mitigate wholesale 

increases, even though OMWD experienced cost increases of its own.

16



10

Midterm Budget Development: 
Departmental Operating Expenditures FY 2026 Update
 

Labor:
• Personnel Costs: 

• Includes 6% anticipated increase in salary and wages based on the District’s current MOU 
• The maximum for SDCPI: 3.5% (actual 2.8% but includes rollover from prior year), and Merit Pool: 2.5%, for a total of 6% cap.

• Staffing Analysis:
• Defer filling Senior Risk Analyst position to FY 2027 that was previously approved and budgeted for FY 2026 
• Temporary Freeze on 2 (two) vacant utility positions
• Net one less position than originally budgeted, for savings

Benefits:
• SDRMA – based on estimated payroll for fiscal year 2026 and 75% mod factor 
• Kaiser: estimated at 5% increase effective 1/1/26 
• ACWA- JPIA – estimated at 6% increase effective 1/1/26
• PERS: 

• Classic - Employer Annual Contribution @13.46% and an additional $1,547,342 for annual unfunded liability payment
• PEPRA - Employer Annual Contribution @7.96% and an additional $25,574 for annual unfunded liability payment

• Planned Annual Additional Discretionary Payment (ADP) to CalPERS (subject to Board approval)
• $500k transfer from the Operating Fund to the Pension Stabilization Fund
• $311k transfer from the Pension Stabilization Fund to CalPERS for the ADP as planned per the Pension Funding Policy 

Others:
• Significant increase in other expenditures such as General Liability and Property Insurance 

Premium, outside services, and supplies. These are offset by delaying positions and making cuts 
to consultants.

17



Midterm Budget Development: 
Departmental Operating Expenditures FY 2026 Update 
(Cont’d)

11

Departmental Cost Cutting Efforts:
• Defer Senior Risk Analyst position to FY 2027
• Reduce outside services, consultants, legal, and supplies by $270k across all departments
• Increase capitalized labor
• An overall reduction of $800K compared to revised departmental budgets submitted by managers for 

FY 2026

Non-operating Revenues:
•Property tax: assume based on FY 2025 projected actual receipts * 2% increase 
•Investment Income: @ 2% annually
•Capacity Fees: $412,000 for FY 2026 based on engineering estimate
•Anticipated Grant Funding: $2.05 million

•$960k CPF for Brackish Project
•$470k Prop1 Round 2 for Potable HOA Pipeline extensions and Extension 153 Flow Meter 
•$540k Title 16 for various Recycled projects
•$75k for EFRR Trails and Parking lot project

18



Proposed Changes to FY 2026 Operating Budget 
(Water and Wastewater) at Midterm - DRAFT

12
* Principal and Interest payments for all outstanding debt.

19



Midterm Capital Budget

1320



14

Midterm Budget Development: 
Capital Expenditures FY 2026 Update
• Small Equipment Purchases

– A $20k decrease in equipment purchases for FY 2026
• $100k proposed increase in Shop and Field equipment offset by a ($120k) decrease in Computer 

Hardware/Software and Automotive Equipment compared to FY 2026 Budget adopted by the Board in 
June 2024.

• See next slide for details
• Water and Wastewater Capital Infrastructure Needs 

– A net $6.2 million proposed decrease in the water, wastewater, and recycled 
overall appropriations for fiscal year 2026

• Proposed appropriation adjustments mainly due to change in project scope, 
increase in supply costs (higher inflation), and timing of capital expenditures 
on several active projects 

• 6 new Capital Improvement Projects to start in FY 2026:
–  Data Center 
–  Strainer Coating Repairs 
–  Encinitas Blvd PRS 
–  10th St PRS Repairs 
–  Replace 4S WRF Clarifier Scum Boxes 
–  Centrifuge 731 Major Service 

21



15

Midterm Budget Development: 
Capital Equipment Expenditures FY 2026 Update 

Surplus from selling District’s vehicles and equipment: $30k through competitive bids process. 

22



FY 2026 - Planned Debt Issuance

16

Pending Board approval - the 2024 Wastewater Cost of Service calls for wastewater capital 
expenditures in FY 2026 through FY 2028 to be partially funded by a debt issue of $6.5 million in 
FY 2026, to avoid wastewater rate spikes and to maintain the minimum reserve balance 
approved by the Board. 

23



Midterm Budget Development:  
Planned Capital Expenditures FY 2026

17

1 Total Board Approved Appropriation amounts are included in more detailed schedules on slides 19-21. Amounts above 
do not reflect $2.045 million in anticipated grant funding for fiscal year 2026.

24



18

Midterm Budget Development:
Budget vs. Appropriation Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 
FY 2026 Update

25



Midterm Budget Development: 
CIP- Appropriation Adjustments by Fund

1926



Midterm Budget Development: 
CIP- Appropriation Adjustments by Fund (Cont’d)

2027



Midterm Budget Development: 
CIP- Appropriation Adjustments by Fund (Cont’d)

2128



22

Next Steps

• Consideration and approval from the Committee to bring 
forward staff’s proposed adjustments to Fiscal Year 2026 
Operating and Capital Budget at Midterm at the May board 
meeting

• Staff to continue updating projections and estimates to 
finalize FY 2026 budget for consideration and final approval
• Staff is waiting on final numbers from SDCWA for purchased water 

wholesale cost increases and pass through
 

• Present final updates to FY 2026 budget for approval by the 
Board at the June meeting
 

29



23

Comments/Questions 

30


	AGENDA
	5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 10, 2025, REGULAR FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
	6. REVIEW AND DISCUSS STAFF’S PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE GENERAL MANAGER’S RECOMMENDED BIENNIAL OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET FISCAL YEARS 2025 AND 2026 AT MIDTERM



